
Minutes 
Land Acquisition Committee 

2 Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive, S. E. 
Suite 1252 East Tower 

Atlanta, GA  30334 
 

February 25, 2013 
 

Attending: 
 
Committee Members Staff Members 
William Bagwell, Chairman Mark Williams 
Mark Mobley, Vice Chairman Jud Turner 
Dwight Davis Homer Bryson 
Duncan Johnson Spud Woodward 
Mike Phelps Dan Forster 
Philip Wilheit Kyle Pearson 
Dee Yancey Zachary Harris 
Rob Leebern, Board Chairman, ex-officio Lauren Curry 
 Steve Friedman 
 Jac Capp 
Board Members Keith Bentley 
Nancy Addison Jim Ussery 
Phyllis Johnson Doralyn Kirkland 
Ray Lambert David Clark 
Aaron McWhorter Jeff Cown 
Paul Shailendra John Martin 
Bodine Sinyard Michael Chadwell 
 Paul Nelson 
 Bryan Alexander 
Visitors Eddie Henderson 
Bill Donohue, LLIDA and NGMA Russ Pennington 
Harold Reheis, Joe Tanner & Associates Lon Revall 
Michael Pisciotta, Georgia Agribusiness Council Mary Walker 
Bryan Tolar, Georgia Agribusiness Council Antoinette Norfleet 
Chris Manganeillo, Georgia River Network Taylor Brown 
Mark M. Woodall, Sierra Club Mary Ann Evans 
Debbie Phillips, GA Industry Environmental Coalition Hellen Harris 
Sally Clark, Georgia Chamber of Commerce  
Doug Fulle, Oglethorpe Power  
Leon Watkins, K & M Landfill  
 



Minutes – Land Acquisition Committee 
February 25, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 
 The February 25, 2013 meeting of the Land Acquisition Committee was called to order by Board 
Chairman Rob Leebern. 
 
 Chairman Leebern called on William Bagwell, Chairman of the Land Acquisition Committee, who 
called on Steve Friedman, Chief of Real Estate. 
 
 Mr. Friedman stated that the first item for consideration was disposition of approximately 1.52± 
acres of leased property owned by the Corps of Engineers (COE-Supplement Agreement #1), George T. 
Bagby State Park, Clay County.  He further stated that the Department entered into a lease with the COE 
on 225± for the George T. Bagby State Park, and the COE has requested a reduction of 1.52± acres from 
that lease to allow for construction of the Phenomenon Trail which will be open to the public.  He added 
that it will begin at the George T. Bagby State Park and will continue to Ft. Gaines and that economic 
invigoration education and environmental appreciation should result from this new trail experience. 
 
 Mr. Friedman stated that he would request the committee recommend that the Board approve 
the item as presented. 
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Mobley, seconded by Mr. Johnson and carried unanimously that the 
committee recommends that the Board adopt the resolution to authorize the Commissioner to seek 
State Properties Commission approval for disposition of approximately 1.52± acres of leased property 
owned by the Corps of Engineers (COE-Supplement Agreement #1), George T. Bagby State Park, Clay 
County, as presented. (Resolution attached hereto and made a part hereof) 
 
 Mr. Friedman stated that the next item for consideration was for quit claim of interest in 861± 
acres to resolve a claim, Chatham County.  He further stated that the 1,600 acre former Tronox plant 
property in Chatham County is a state Superfund site under a Bankruptcy Consent Decree and 
Settlement.  He added that the State through EPD is a beneficiary to the settlement.  He further added 
the Tronox property is adjacent to the State’s Fort Jackson Historic Site and National Landmark and 
presently includes 700± acres of marsh. 
 
 Mr. Friedman stated the State is in discussions with the bankruptcy trustee to acquire title of a 
30± acre buffer around Fort Jackson, and to clear title to the 700± acres of marsh. He further stated the 
trustee has the Tronox property for sale now, and as part of the State’s anticipated resolution of these 
discussions, the State Properties Commission  is seeking legislation to quit claim any interest the State of 
Georgia may have in 861± acres of property (not including the 30 acre buffer or marsh) in order to 
resolve any claim on that portion of the 1,600 acres. 
 
 Mr. Friedman stated that as a part of the potential settlement, the State of Georgia may quit 
claim any interest it may have in the 861± acres. It is unknown at this time whether the quit claim would 
be to the bankruptcy trustee or to the winning bidder for the property acquisition. He further stated 
that the consideration for the conveyance would be the environmental clean-up of a portion of the 
Tronox property, which is listed on the Georgia Hazardous Site Inventory as a state Superfund site. He 
added that the clean-up of the 861± acres would also benefit the State’s economy, and avoid a potential 
lawsuit. 
 



Minutes – Land Acquisition Committee 
February 25, 2013 
Page 3 
 
 
 Mr. Friedman stated that he would request the committee recommend that the Board approve 
the item as presented. 
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Mobley, seconded by Mr. Johnson, and carried unanimously that the 
committee recommends that the Board adopt the resolution to authorize the Commissioner to seek 
State Properties Commission approval to quit claim any interest in 861± acres to resolve a claim, 
Chatham County, as presented. (Resolution attached hereto and made a part hereof) 
 
 Mr. Friedman stated that the final item for consideration was the granting of a Revocable 
License and Permanent Easement by the State Properties Commission and the General Assembly for the 
purpose of installing, maintaining and operating fiber optic cables providing internet service to 
Amicalola Falls State Park, Windstream Standard, L.L.C., 4.26± acres, Dawson County. 
 
 Mr. Friedman stated the Parks Division asked Windstream Standard, L.L.C. to bring a fiber optic 
line into Amicalola Falls State Park which will provide more reliable internet service to the lodge, park 
and possibly the campground and cottages.  
 
 Mr. Friedman stated that he presented this item to the Board in December 2012, and at that 
time, Windstream Standard, LLC said they would need 0.98± acres for the revocable license and 
permanent easement. He further stated Windstream now is asking for 3.29± acres for underground 
footage and 0.97± acres for overhead footage for a total of 4.26± acres. 
 
 Mr. Friedman stated that the affected property is heritage preserve designated. He further 
stated the Parks Division is aware of this and recommends that the activity not be considered a change 
of use because it will be mostly underground using existing roadsides and access roads, no new poles or 
structures will be necessary, and it will not interfere with the protection and conservation of the 
recreational, natural and cultural resources of the property. He added that no adverse impact of any 
interest of the Department has been identified relative to operations, and that the revocable license will 
be converted to a permanent easement by the General Assembly. 
 
 Mr. Friedman stated that he would request  the committee recommend that the Board approve 
the item as presented. 
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Mobley, seconded by Mr. Johnson and carried unanimously that the 
committee recommends that the Board adopt the resolution to authorize the Commissioner to seek 
State Properties Commission approval for the granting of a Revocable License and Permanent Easement 
by the State Properties Commission and the General Assembly for the purpose of installing, maintaining 
and operating fiber optic cables providing internet service to Amicalola Falls State Park, Windstream 
Standard, L.L.C., 4.26± acres, Dawson County, as presented. (Resolution attached hereto and made a 
part hereof) 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 


